
Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order by Board President Kathy Kolupanowich at 6:00 p.m. 

ATTENDANCE 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Mr. Ken Chiarella (arrived at 6:10) 
Ms. Jill DeMaio 
Ms. Kathy Kolupanowich 
Ms. Patricia Lang 
Ms. Dawn Quarino 
Mr. Steven Riback 

 
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Ms. Michele Arminio  
Mr. Marvin Braverman 
Mr. Frank Russo 
 

JAMESBURG BOARD MEMBER REPRESENTATIVE ABSENT 

Mr. Paul Rutsky 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Dr. Michael G. Kozak, Superintendent of Schools 
Dr. Dori Alvich, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 
Mr. Michael C. Gorski, Business Administrator/Board Secretary 
 
STUDENT BOARD MEMBER REPRESENTATIVES’ PRESENT 

Ms. Stefani Scalisi 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC - 38 

After the Pledge of allegiance and roll call, a motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by 

Ms. Lang that the Board take a ten minute recess. Motion carried.  

The Board recessed from 6:03 p.m. until 6:13 p.m. 

The Board Secretary read the following statement: 

In accordance with the provisions of the New Jersey Open Public Meetings Law, the Monroe 

Township Board of Education has caused notice of this meeting to be published by having the 

date, time and place thereof posted March 10, 2017: 

1. At all schools, 

2. Home News Tribune, 

3. Cranbury Press, and 

4. Filed with the clerk of the municipality. 

 

CLOSED SESSION RESOLUTION 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

2 
 

Be It resolved, that the Board of Education of the Township of Monroe hereby moves to go into 

Closed Session, in accordance with the Sunshine Law, Chapter 231 of the Public Laws of 1975 

(N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 through 10:4-21), to discuss the following subject(s): 

 

 Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying 

 Potential Land Acquisition  

 Legal advice regarding the proposed Memorandum of Agreement in connection with a 

new collective negotiations agreement between the Board and the Monroe Township 

School Administrators Association; and 

 Legal advice regarding the School Ethics Act. 

The discussion conducted in closed session can be disclosed to the public at such time as the 

need for confidentially no longer exists. 

 

A motion was made by Ms. DeMaio and seconded by Mr. Riback that the members of the Board 

of Education go into closed session. Motion carried. 

 

Adjourned to Closed Session at 6:15 p.m. 

Returned to Public Meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

Ms. Lang and Ms. Quarino excused themselves from the closed session meeting at 6:45 p.m. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A motion was made by Mr. Chiarella and seconded by Mr. Riback to approve the minutes for the 

Public Board of Education Meeting held on January 25, 2017. Motion carried.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. Quarino to approve the minutes for the 

Closed Session Meeting held on January 25, 2017. Motion carried.  

 

PRESENTATION & PUBLIC HEARING OF THE PRELIMINARY 2017-2018 SCHOOL 

BUDGET 

 

Dr. Kozak, Mr. Gorski and Dr. Alvich gave a presentation on the 2017-2018 Preliminary Budget.  

The presentation included revenue sources, projected student enrollment, facility needs, 

curriculum needs, instructional equipment, 4 new busses, 2 new vans, maintenance vehicles, and 

additional staff. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Mr. Chiarella that the members of the 

Monroe Township Board of Education approve the following resolution: 

 

Be It Resolved, by the Monroe Township Board of Education that the 2017/18 Tentative General 

Fund Budget be adopted in the amount of $112,375,839 and a Tentative General Fund Local Tax 

Levy in the amount of $98,472,001 and a Tentative Special Revenue Fund in the amount of 

$1,101,208 and a Tentative Debt Service Budget in the amount of $11,158,366 and a Tentative Debt 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

3 
 

Service Local Tax Levy in the amount of $10,267,265. Whereby, the Tentative 2017/18 Budget totals 

$124,635,413; and 

Whereas, the Monroe Township Board of Education has been notified of state aid amounts; and 

Whereas, such state aid amounts are: 

For 2017/18 the Categorical Special Education Aid is $1,976,819; and 

For 2017/18 the Categorical Security Aid is $103,764; and  

For 2017/18 the Categorical Transportation Aid is $570,717; and 

For 2017/18 the Debt Service Aid is $635,679; and 

For 2017/18 the Other State Aid consisting of: 

 PARCC Readiness Aid of $58,980 and 

 Per Pupil Grant Aid of $58,980 and  

                                            Professional Learning Community Aid of $62,515 and  

                                            Host District Support Aid of $596 

Whereas, the Monroe Township Board of Education has estimated a State Aid amount pursuant to 

application; and 

For 2017/18 the estimated Extraordinary Aid amount is $214,453; and 

Whereas, Policy #6471 and N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-7.3 provides that the board of education shall establish 

in the annual school budget a maximum expenditure amount that may be allotted for such travel and 

expense reimbursement for 2017/18 school year. 

Now, Therefore Be It Resolved, that the Monroe Township Board of Education hereby establishes 

the school district travel maximum for the 2017/18 school year at the tentative sum of $158,422, and  

Be It Further Resolved that the School Business Administrator shall track and record these costs to 

insure that the maximum amount is not exceeded; and  

Whereas, as a result of the extraordinary budget efficiencies created by the administrative 

stewardship of the 2015/2016 Budget, which led to an increase in excess surplus of $1,124,311 as 

compared to the prior year as an alternate revenue source to taxes, the Board has not exceeded the 

maximum spending authority and furthermore has not used the $600,000 of banked cap created in 

2016/17; notwithstanding the continuing inequity in state aid funding as well as the significant 

student growth and widespread facility needs in the District; and 

Now Therefore Let It Be Resolved, that the Superintendent of Schools and the Business 

Administrator/Board Secretary file the required documents with the Executive County 

Superintendent. 

 

Ms. Kolupanowich announced that members of the public may offer any comments regarding the 

Budget. The following members of the public spoke: 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

4 
 

Prakash Parab 33 Dayna Drive – stated that the quality of education is most important, if the 

Board needs to increase salaries to compete with other schools for the best teachers he would like 

the Board to do so and not let the Budget jeopardize the quality of teachers.  

 

Vinay Singh 13 Jake Place - inquired what the Boards plan is to control a tax increase for next 

year. Mr. Gorski responded that Ms. Kolupanowich has formed an Ad Hoc Committee for Fair 

Funding. Mr. Gorski added that Mr. Chiarella is the chair of that the committee and will be 

reaching out to community members, township officials, members of the MTEA, fellow board 

members and staff to address the lack of fair funding. Ms. Kolupanowich added that the first 

meeting of that committee will be Wednesday, March 22, 2017. 

Saikumar 24 Catherine Street – inquired if the purchase of property will be included in a future 

budget and inquired how the property would be funded. Mr. Gorski responded that generally it is 

funded through a bond referendum. 

Victor Cooper 525 Abbot Court, a member of Citizens for Responsible Development expressed his 

frustration with the lack of state aid that Monroe receives. Mr. Cooper inquired what steps the community can 

take to address this. Dr. Kozak responded that besides the recent testimony at the senate hearings Mr. Chiarella 

and the Ad Hoc Committee will be working to continue the fight for our fair share.  Dr. Kozak added that other 

districts are underfunded as well and he is working with other superintendents on ways to address this issue. 

Mr. Cooper inquired if the use of a public relations service has been considered. Ms. Kolupanowich responded 

that the Ad Hoc Committee will be considering that. 

Doug Poye 4 Tamarack Road – inquired about the reduction in communications/telephones listed on handout 

C.  Mr. Poye also requested an explanation of the new public information item, the additional staff including 

the two school administrators and what led to the decision of including that number of staff. Mr. Gorski 

responded that Mr. Reggie Washington recommended a voice over IP System and the savings from that system 

have been very attractive and are now being realized in the Budget. Mr. Gorski responded that the public 

information is related to the difficulty that the district faces when trying to communicate with the community. 

Mr. Gorski added that there is a shared service agreement being explored with the township for that purpose. 

Regarding the two new assisted principals, Mr. Gorski responded that one will be placed at the middle school 

and the other one at the high school, which will correlate with the State’s best practices on per pupil ratios.  

Krishna Tekale 11 Jake Place – stated that additional staff has been added in the budget without any classrooms 

for them. Mr. Tekale added that currently there is a 28:1 student/teacher ratio and inquired about the lack of 

space to house the new teachers and 500 projected students. Mr. Gorski responded that currently there are 1,000 

unhoused students and he agrees that additional facilities are needed. Additionally, principals have 

recommended portable classrooms for the 2018/2019 school year to address the issue.  

Raj Chekuri 2 Jake Place- stressed his concerns relating to the state aid funding Monroe receives. Mr. Chekuri 

inquired why local politicians are not involved.  Ms. Kolupanowich responded that the Board has been working 

very closely with the Mayor and legislators. Mr. Chekuri added that he has not seen anything in the media and 

hopes that the local legislators start attending board of education meetings.  

Donald Isaacson 39 Lakehurst Way – stressed his frustrations with the current legislator’s lack of assistance 

to get Monroe more state aid.  

Victor Cooper 525 Abbot Court – inquired if there was money in the budget for portable classrooms. Mr. 

Gorski responded that the trailers won’t be brought in until the 2018/2019 school year.   

Prakash Parab 33 Dayna Drive – Mr. Parab stated that he recently gave testimony at the Senate Hearing and 

encouraged the public to write letters to our legislators and lobby for more state aid.  



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

5 
 

Chrissy Skurbe 21 Preakness Drive – inquired what schools the assistant principals were being assigned to. Mr. 

Gorski responded the middle and high school. Regarding the Budget, Ms. Skurbe inquired if there were any 

cuts in programs or services for the students. Mr. Gorski responded to his knowledge they weren’t any. 

Sri Rachakonda 20 Jake Place – inquired if district teachers are assessed, if that information is public and how 

they match up to other schools. Dr. Kozak responded based on our student’s performance the teachers must 

match up very well as our students are preforming at a very high level.   

Surendra Anchula 22 Jake Place – inquired if the school ranking influences the budget, adding that the school 

ranking has been dropping. Dr. Kozak explained the rating process and possible reasons why Monroe may have 

dropped. Dr. Kozak stated that the administration and the Board’s priority is the quality of the education being 

provided and is wasn’t sacrificed when developing the Budget.  

 Roll call 6-0-0-0-4 Motion carried. 

STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT   

Ms. Scalisi reported that spring sports have started and the high school chorus will be performing 

in Disney this week. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Mr. Ken Chiarella, Chairperson of the Buildings, Grounds and Transportation Committee, reported 

that the committee met on March 6th and received an update on the land transfer for Church Road. 

The committee also discussed the options for housing Pupil Personnel Services and recommended 

renewing the lease. Lastly, the committee received an update on the tennis court project. 

  

PUBLIC FORUM  

Chrissy Skurbe 21 Preakness Drive – inquired what is being done to address the 504 projected 

students coming into the district. Dr. Kozak responded that they are hiring additional staff, looking 

to reconfigure the scheduling and utilizing every available space. Next, Ms. Skurbe inquired about 

the land negotiations discussed earlier this evening. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that at this time 

it is still confidential. Ms. Skurbe inquired about the location of the land. Mr. Gorski responded 

that he cannot divulge the location yet but he will be providing a brief update during his business 

report.   

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT/RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

PERSONNEL 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. DeMaio that Personnel Items A-AI be 

approved by consent roll call.  Roll Call 6-0-0-0-4. Motion carried. A copy of the Personnel section 

of the Superintendent’s Report is attached to the official set of minutes.  

 

BOARD ACTION  

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. DeMaio that Board Action Items A-P be 

approved by consent roll call. Mr. Riback inquired about the changes to Item O - Policy #0155 – 

Board Committees. Mr. Riback stressed some concerns regarding the consideration of member 

experience for placement on committees and the numbers of members being placed on a 



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

6 
 

committee. Ms. Kolupanowich responded that the suggested change gives the board president the 

option to combine committees should the need arise. Roll Call 6-0-0-0-4. Motion carried with Ms. 

Quarino and Mr. Riback voting no on Item O – Policy #0155 Board Committees. A copy of the 

Board Action section of the Superintendent’s Report is attached to the official set of minutes.  

 

BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT/RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Mr. Gorski updated the members of the public on the search for land to house a middle school. 

Mr. Gorski stated that the sixty acres on Church Road to be transferred from the township is not 

feasible at this time. Mr. Gorski added that administration has found a more suitable piece of land 

that consists of 30 acres of non-wetlands; has a two road access; ample space for fields; located in 

a sewer service zone and both property owners are open to a future site of a school on the property. 

Mr. Gorski reported that he and Ms. Kolupanowich solicited the township to help secure the land 

by utilizing their financing options and regulations. Mr. Gorski explained the process and reported 

that it was well received by the township. Mr. Gorski added that this is another clear example that 

the township is aware of the growth and they are willing to help the school district in addressing 

the problem. Mr. Gorski further reported that this collaboration will save the taxpayers a great 

amount of money.  

 

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. DeMaio that Board Action Items A – K 

be approved by consent roll call. Roll call 6-0-0-0-4. Motion carried with Ms. Lang and Ms. 

Kolupanowich recusing on Item I - Travel Resolution; Ms. Lang, Ms. Quarino and Mr. Russo 

recusing on Item K - MTSAA Memorandum of Agreement. A copy of the Board Action section 

of the Business Administrator’s Report is attached to the official set of minutes.  

 

BOARD PRESIDENT’S REPORT  

Ms. Kolupanowich thanked the Monroe Township School Administrators Association Committee 

(MTSAA) for their cooperation with a mutually beneficial agreement. Ms. Kolupanowich stated 

that the Board’s negotiating committee consisted of Mr. Riback, Mr. Chiarella, and herself along 

with the help of Dr. Kozak, Mr. Gorski and Mary Smith.  

 

Ms. Kolupanowich stated that she attended the Middlesex County School Boards Association 32nd 

Annual Student Recognition Program with Ms. Lang and Dr. Kozak and congratulated both Rachel 

Fernandez and Mary Anne Tenerelli on this achievement. 

 

Ms. Kolupanowich reported that on February 23rd she testified at the Assembly Education Senate 

Committee in Trenton along with Mr. Gorski, Dr. Kozak, Mr. Chiarella, Mr. Riback, Mr. Parab, 

Senator Linda Greenstein, Assemblyman De Angelo and Assemblyman Benson. Ms. 

Kolupanowich reported that she feels that their concerns were well received. Ms. Kolupanowich 

stated that the committee asked a lot of questions and were focused on the number of unhoused 

students and the tax impact on the senior citizens. 

 

OTHER BOARD OF EDUCATION BUSINESS   



Minutes of the Public Meeting of the Monroe Township Board of Education held on March 16, 2017 at the 

Monroe Township High School.                                                                                                                205 

 

7 
 

Ms. DeMaio stated that she was disappointed to hear that the NJ DOE approved all the charter 

applications to expand including on Hatikvah. Ms. DeMaio reported that Monroe sends fourteen 

students to Hatikvah costing $150,000.00 annually.  

 

Mr. Riback reported that early this month he attended the Read Across America program at 

Applegarth and Oak Tree and enjoyed it very much. Mr. Riback stated that he received thank you 

notes from Ms. Pugliese’s third grade class which he appreciated and he was very grateful for the 

opportunity to attend.  

 

Ms. Lang reported that she recently attended the NJSBA Technology training. Ms. Lang stated 

that she met Kimberely Harrington, Acting NJ Commissioner of Education and was glad to hear 

her say that her number one priority is the children.  

 

Ms. Lang reported that today the State House of Representative passed the ACR215 resolution, 

which would strike down PARCC as a graduation requirement. Ms. Lang stated that Senator 

Sweeney will put it to a vote in the senate soon. 

  

PUBLIC FORUM 

Prakash Parab 33 Dayna Drive – stressed his concerns regarding the burden that affordable housing 

puts on school districts.  

NEXT PUBLIC MEETING 

Ms. Kolupanowich stated that the next public meeting of the Monroe Township Board of 

Education will convene at 7:00 p.m. on Wednesday, April 26, 2017. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

A motion was made by Mr. Riback and seconded by Ms. DeMaio that the meeting be adjourned. 

Motion carried. The public meeting adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 

 

      Respectfully submitted, 

                                                    
      Michael C. Gorski, CPA 

                                                                        Business Administrator/Board Secretary   

 

 

 




































	Public 03.16.17
	board agenda 3-16-17

